
Our Mission:  The Glendale Community College Regional Consortium welcomes adult learners 
of all abilities and provides accessible pathways to skill acquisition and education towards  

viable employment, through multiple career partners. 

California Adult Education Program Implementation Meeting 
April 18, 2024  1:00pm-3:00pm 

 Meeting Agenda 

Agenda Item Purpose Person(s) 
Responsible 

Timeframe 

I. Introduction A. Welcome Alfred 5 min 

II. Minutes A. Review & Approval of
Minutes for March 21, 2024

Board 5 min 

III. CFAD A. Approval of Consortium
Fiscal Administration
Declaration for 2024-2025

Board 5 min 

IV. Professional 
Development 

A. Emotional Hijack:  How to Not
Take Things Personal!

Melina Sardar 105 min 

V. Next Meeting A. Next meeting date:
May 16, 2024

 IX. Adjourn A. Adjournment



 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Adult Education Implementation Virtual Meeting  
March 21, 2024  1:00pm-3:00pm 

 
Attendees: Patrica Fitzgerald, Edith Gonzalez, Manoosh Herabidian, Narine 

Hovhannisyan, Laura Isaacs-Galvan, Lina Jazrawi, Ani Khachikyan, Evie 
Kim, Iskra Martinez, Caryn Panec, Jonathan Pelletier, Yessenia Villacorta, 
Anthony Villafane  

Board Members: Alfred Ramirez, Judith Velasco 

Coordinator: MaryAnn Pranke      
 

Meeting Notes 
Agenda Item Outcome 

I.  Introduction A. Director’s Report 
1. Alfred shared that Garfield Campus held a wonderful 

celebration for the Persian New Year with food, music, and 
dancing. 
 

2. Wait lists continue to grow for ESL classes with about 
1,300 currently on the list. 
 

3. Alfred also announced that Spring Break begins the week 
of April 15th.  

II.  Public 
Comment 

A. Community Comments 
1. No comments were submitted or presented. 

III.  Minutes A. Approval of Minutes 
1. Minutes for February 22, 2024 were presented and 

approved by the Board. 
IV.  Strategic 

Planning 
A. Marketing 

1. Patricia presented the latest updates on GlendaleLEARNS 
marketing materials and website.  
 

2. MaryAnn will send out the link for partners and members to 
review the information. 

V.  Professional 
Development 

A. Partner Presentation: Frank D. Lanterman Regional Center 
1. Evie Kim and Yesenia Villacorta conducted a presentation 

on programs and services available through the Regional 
Center. 
 

VI.  Partner 
Updates 

B. Partner Updates 
1. Student Success Center:  Caryn provided an update on 

the programs. She noted that programs to assist with 



 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Agenda Item Outcome 
attaining a diploma or equivalent, as well as basic 
education, are all open enrollment courses. She also noted 
that dual enrollment is increasing amongst high school 
students to enroll in non-credit courses as well as non-
credit to credit courses available at Verdugo Campus. 

a. In order to meet the new state requirement to be 
implemented in the fall, Caryn announced that they 
will begin to offer Ethnic Studies to assist students.  

 
2. GYA:  Laura announced that the STEP paid work 

experience program was underway for youth and young 
adults (ages 16-21) with disabilities. Any Garfield student 
that has a disability and is within the age group can be 
referred to Laura. 

a. Laura also shared that Garfield students, ages 18-
24, are also eligible for paid work experience. Any 
Garfield student within this age group can be 
referred to Laura if they are interested in 
internships, externships, part-time and full-time 
work. 
 

b. Laura also announced that GYA is holding its 
annual charity golf tournament and experience isn’t 
required to play. She will send the flyer to MaryAnn 
who will disseminate to the group. 
 

3. VJC: Ani reported that she currently has 11 medical 
assistants enrolled in paid externship services. 

a. Ani also reported she has approximately eight 
externship positions for students in office or 
computer courses as well as accounting courses. 
 

b. Ani will be sending out a flyer on an upcoming 
recruitment event at VJC for Security Guards which 
will be held on March 27th.  MaryAnn will 
disseminate the flyer once she receives it. 

 
4. DOR:  Jonathan also promoted the STEPS program for 

people with disabilities ages 16-21. Services include 
counseling, job coaching, and paid work-based learning. 
 

5. JVS: Narine announced that services continue for 
refugees including supportive services and Transitional 
Subsidized Employment (TSE). Supportive services 



Page 3 of 3 

Agenda Item Outcome 
include clothing and housing assistance for Ukrainian 
refugees. 

a. Edith provided on update on the JVS Works
programs. Flyers were disseminated to the group
after the February meeting. She noted that all were
still open and recruiting except for Healthworks
which would not be available until after March 27,
2024.

VII. Next Meeting Next meeting will be held: April 18, 2024; 1:00-3:00pm 



4/12/24, 4:08 PM NOVA: CAEP CFAD 19 Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346/cfad/preview 1/7

CAEP
CFAD

Produced: Apr ��, ����, ��:�� PM UTC - By MaryAnn Pranke

�� Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium DRAFT

����-��

Fiscal Declaration - Dra�

Consortium Name: �� Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

Funding Channel: Fiscal Agent

Fiscal Agent: Glendale CCD

Narrative: The Glendale Local Education and Resource Network (GlendaleLEARNS) planned allocations are based on member
vote and on achievement of goals and objectives in the annual plan as well as the California Adult Education Program (CAEP)
Three-Year Plan. The Consortium reviews achievement of goals and objectives in its monthly public meetings to ensure
accountability and transparency. Consortium review also ensures that achievements are in alignment with GlendaleLEARNS'
Vision, Mission, and Values. A contract is executed on an annual basis between Glendale Community College District (GCCD) and
the Verdugo Workforce Development Board (VWDB) which adds another layer of accountability. Each semester, the VWDB submits
a status report to the fiscal agent that outlines all accomplishments with full backup documentation to demonstrate
accomplishments. Goals and tasks are aligned to the Consortium priorities and target populations which include English
Language Learners, people with disabilities, and low income. Allocations are based on sta�ing, programs and services that are
designed to meet the needs of the special populations. The Consortium conducts a comprehensive review of goals, objectives,
and strategies on an annual basis in preparation for the Annual Plan and the Three-Year Plan. Accomplishments are summarized,
and goals, objectives and strategies are reviewed for continued relevancy, revision or elimination from the plan(s). The review of
goal accomplishment assists in determining changes for fiscal administration or program coordination and management which
would drive changes in allocations. As high performers, no changes in administration or CAEP coordination or management have
been needed. Allocations remain the same and will remain the same in the next program year.

Changes: No Changes

Member Allocations

Member Name (2024-25) (2023-24) (2022-23)

Glendale CCD $822,733 $811,664 $699,042

Verdugo Workforce Development Board* $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Total Allocated to Members $1,322,733 $1,311,664 $1,199,042

Total CAEP Funds $1,322,733 $1,312,757 $1,213,044

Total Remaining $0 $1,093 $14,002

Carryover Threshold

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346


4/12/24, 4:08 PM NOVA: CAEP CFAD 19 Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346/cfad/preview 2/7

Input a percentage of carryover that your consortium agrees will be considered an excessive amount.

Should a member, or members, exceed this carryover percentage upon certification of their Q� report, they will be flagged as
non-compliant with the carryover legislation (EC �����). One year of non-compliance does not carry a penalty. However, should
the same member, or members, have two consecutive years of non-compliance the consortium may agree, by majority vote, to
reallocate an amount that does not exceed the carryover to other members.

A consortium does have the ability to opt-out. To do so, simply toggle the carryover threshold button to the o� position.

Carryover Threshold O�

Consortia Report on Governance Compliance of Rules and Procedures v.�

�. Have all community college districts, school districts, county o�ices of education, or any joint powers authority, located
within the boundaries of the adult education region been allowed to join the consortium as a member? *

Yes

�. Have all members committed to reporting any funds available to that member for the purposes of education and workforce
services for adults and the uses of those funds? *

Yes

�. How will the available funds be reported and evaluated? *

Each member provides financial reports to their respective governing bodies on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis as
required by their respective bylaws, policies and regulations. Financial reports for all funds, including CAEP funds, are reported to
ensure integrity and transparency. This allows governing boards to evaluate and identify under- and over[�]expenditures
according to planned expenditures and request either additional information or corrective actions. To date, no significant under-
or over-expenditures have occurred that would cause concern of the governing bodies. Expenditure reports are also entered into
the NOVA system and submitted to the state on a quarterly basis. Expenditures are recorded relative to the Member Plans and
Budget to determine any significant under- or over-expenditures. Significant changes in expenditures or expected changes are
evaluated by each member to determine any adjustments needed in Member Plans and Budgets. Changes in Member Plans and
Budgets are implemented along with any expenditure reports, which are then recertified. As a contractor to GCC, the VWDB
submits an invoice to GCC at a minimum, on a quarterly basis, delineating all deliverables completed and backup documentation
to support the invoice. Expenditures are recorded in the invoice in accordance with the deliverables completed, and submitted
with the backup documentation to GCC for review prior to reimbursing costs to the VWDB. The CFAD is completed on an annual
basis and presented to the members for approval during our public monthly meetings to ensure transparency.

�. How will you assure that each member of the consortium is represented only by an o�icial designated by the governing
board of the member? *

Each member appointed to the Board, must submit a copy of the action item presented to their respective governing board
during a public meeting, and the minutes of the meeting to verify that the action item was approved. Once those documents are
submitted to GlendaleLEARNS, the new member will be introduced at the following monthly meeting and will be added as the
o�icial member and representative in the NOVA system. All documentation, including the action items and minutes are
maintained by the GlendaleLEARNS Coordinator. New members also receive a copy of the Bylaws, Three-Year Plan, One-Year Plan,
and a walk-through of the NOVA system and approval process. 

�. How will you assure that each member of the consortium participates in any decision made by the consortium? *

Decisions are made during the monthly public meetings. Actions are brought forward to the members during the meeting and a
formal vote is taken with results recorded in the minutes. A quorum of ��% of members present at minimum, is required for
decisions to be made. If a quorum is not confirmed during each meeting, actions and decisions will be postponed until the next



4/12/24, 4:08 PM NOVA: CAEP CFAD 19 Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346/cfad/preview 3/7

monthly meeting. Emergency meetings can be called if a decision is needed prior to the next meeting with a �� hour public notice
and all Brown Act requirements followed accordingly. All documents are maintained by the GlendaleLEARNS Coordinator and
posted on the website. To ensure that members and partners are aware of upcoming action items, meeting agendas for the
monthly meetings are posted �� hours prior to the meeting, in alignment with the Brown Act. 
�. What will be the relative voting power of each member? *

� member = � vote

�. How will decisions be approved? *

by majority vote of ��%

�. How did you arrive at that decision-making model? *

The GlendaleLEARNS Board discussed several options for voting and decision making powers. To demonstrate the importance of
each member, the Board voted and approved that each member would have an equal vote, regardless of whether they received
CAEP funds or not. The majority vote was also approved as the minimum required for decisions to be upheld; however, every
issue is discussed with the goal of reaching consensus. As a small board, consensus is important to ensure that all members
support the decision made. The majority vote decision is also guided by the Brown Act requirements. To date, no vote has taken
place there was not a unanimous vote. 

�. How will proposed decisions be considered in open, properly noticed public meetings of the consortium at which members
of the public may comment? *

GlendaleLEARNS decisions are made during the monthly public meetings to allow the partners and community to provide input.
Agendas for the public meetings are posted publicly �� hours prior the meeting, in accordance with the Brown Act, to notify the
public regarding upcoming decisions. Agendas include an allocation of time for the public to enter comments during the public
meeting. All discussions are open for attendees, partners and members to participate in prior to the board members taking action
and conducting a formal vote. All members, partners and other attendees can submit comments verbally, in writing, or enter into
the “chat” option of a webinar if participating virtually. 

��. Describe how will you provide the public with adequate notice of a proposed decision and consider any comments
submitted by members of the public. *

GlendaleLEARNS follows the Brown Act definition for adequate notice which: �� hours prior to the meeting being held. Notices
are posted on GlendaleLEARNS website and emailed with meeting packets to the members, partners and other stakeholders on
the public distribution list. Comments submitted by partners and the public are fully discussed and incorporated into the action
and decision made. If a comment is not incorporated, an explanation is provided. Typically, comments are not considered or
incorporated if the recommendation or suggestion is not in alignment with the GlendaleLEARNS plans, bylaws, or regulatory
requirements including CAEP or California Education Codes.

��. Describe how comments submitted by members of the public will be distributed publicly. *

All comments submitted during the meeting are summarized in the meeting minutes or a separate document attached to the
minutes. All meeting documents are posted on the GlendaleLEARNS website for continued access by the public. Meeting minutes
are included in monthly meeting packets and distributed to GlendaleLEARNS members, partners and stakeholders through its
distribution list, regardless of whether they attended the previous meeting or are attending the next meeting.

��. Describe the process by which the consortium will solicit and consider comments and input regarding a proposed decision
from other entities located in the adult education region that provide education and workforce services for adults. *

GlendaleLEARNS members, partners and stakeholders that participate in monthly meetings represent adult education, K-��
education including Glendale Unified School District, local and state government including the City of Glendale, State of
California Employment Development Department, and State of California Department of Rehabilitation; community based



4/12/24, 4:08 PM NOVA: CAEP CFAD 19 Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346/cfad/preview 4/7

organizations including International Rescue Committee and Armenian Relief Society; and workforce agencies including the
VWDB and the Verdugo Jobs Center (local AJCC). This diverse group allows input by a multitude of organizations that also provide
services to adult education students. Discussions are facilitated by the Coordinator to ensure that comments are considered prior
to decisions. Meeting participants can voice their suggestions and ideas verbally or enter into the "chat" option if the meeting is
virtual. A final discussion period is announced prior to finalizing any decision by the board. Comments are recorded in meeting
minutes and are reviewed at the next meeting for any changes needed prior to approval by the Board. 
��. How will you determine approval of a distribution schedule pursuant to Section �����? *

Member Plans and Budgets are aligned to the GlendaleLEARNS Three Year Plans and Annual Plans. All strategies, goals and
measures are developed in alignment with the seven services allowable under CAEP and the CAEP Fiscal Management Guide. This
ensures that approval of any distribution schedule and expenditures is in alignment with Section �����.

��. Has the consortium A) designated a member to serve as the fund administrator to receive and distribute funds from the
program or B) chosen to have a funds flow directly to the member districts based upon the approved distribution schedule? *

A) designated a member to serve as the fund administrator to receive and distribute funds from the program

��. How will members join, leave, or be dismissed from the consortium? *

GlendaleLEARNS currently has three members: GCC, VWDB and Glendale Unified School District (GUSD). GUSD does not provide
CAEP services and does not receive funding. VWDB receives funding under contract with GCC. Members joined as allowed under
AB��� or as approved by CAEP. GCC will follow requirements for determining member e�ectiveness in order to determine if a
member should be dismissed. While member representatives have turned over for one member, the member remains the same.
The seat currently is vacant; however, the member remains. The VWDB receives funding through a contract which outlines
specific deliverables that must be met. The contract is cost reimbursement based on an invoice submitted along with backup
documentation prior to receiving reimbursement from GCC. This ensures that performance is achieved prior to CAEP expenditure.
These safety nets ensure member accountability to avoid the need to dismiss a member. The only other member that was invited
to join, although not required, was the local County O�ice of Education which has declined the invitation but remains on the
distribution list as a stakeholder. No member has asked to leave and GlendaleLEARNS does not anticipate that a member would
request to leave. With only three members comprising the GlendaleLEARNS Board, members work diligently to ensure that needs
are met and communication remains open to identify any issues that may impact member participation. To date, the three
members have remained the same since the inception of the Consortium. 

��. What is the consortium's defined "excessive" member carryover percentage threshold? *

Expenditures are monitored on a quarterly basis as reports are prepared and submitted to the state via NOVA. There may be
minimal amounts of funds that are not expended in the same year received and will be included in the budget for the next
program year. GlendaleLEARNS members use the FIFO method for expenditure of funds to ensure that funds are expended in the
next program year and not carried over beyond the “Target Spend Down Date”. GlendaleLEARNS does not receive a large
allocation, at just a little more than $�.�M which are typically expended in the year received. Funds have never been carried over
beyond the Target Spend Down Date and over the past years, funds have been expended in the same year that funds are received.
Closeout is conducted through the NOVA system and each year, closeout is completed as scheduled, further demonstrating that
funds are expended within the program year received. 

��. Please explain how the consortium will monitor and administer carryover funds. What is the consortiumʼs technical
assistance and reasonable intervention process? What additional bylaws do you have that govern carryover? *

GlendaleLEARNS bylaws as well as MOUs with each member specify allowable expenditures. Included in all documents, policies,
and contracts is regulatory compliance, including the CAEP Fiscal Management Guide and carryover rules. GlendaleLEARNS
receives less than $�M in CAEP funds through apportionment and COLA funds take the funding slightly over $�.�M in a typical
program year. Student needs exceed the amount received through CAEP funds, allowing members to easily achieve full
expenditures of funds in the program year they are received, without the need to carryover funds. 



4/12/24, 4:08 PM NOVA: CAEP CFAD 19 Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346/cfad/preview 5/7

��. How does your consortium define member e�ectiveness? *

GlendaleLEARNS defines member e�ectiveness using the Member E�ectiveness Report/Memo which is in alignment with Section
����� and include: �) Each member must participate in completing and updating the Annual Plan Template. �) AEBG member
funds must be expended in the seven program areas, and services provided must be consistent with the plan. �) Each member
must participate in completing and updating the �-year Consortia Plan, including any amendments. �) Member expenditures of
CAEP funds must match the objectives and activities included in the Annual Plan. �) Members participate in consortium/public
meetings. �) Members participate in consortium final decisions. �) Members report student level enrollment data and outcomes
for mid-year and final reporting. �) Members share information on programs o�ered, and the resources being used to support the
programs. �) Members provide services that address the needs identified in the adult education plan. ��) Members file biannual
financial expenditure and progress reports with the regional consortium. 

��. What bylaws does your consortium have addressing member e�ectiveness? *

GlendaleLEARNS Board has a set of bylaws approved by the board which includes member expectations and relative member
e�ectiveness. The MOUs between GCC and each member also includes information on member e�ectiveness and contribution to
overall Consortium performance such as referral of students to adult education. The contract between GCC and VWDB includes
member e�ectiveness as appropriate for a member receiving funding through a contract. Assurances for member e�ectiveness
are also signed on annual basis by each member as part of the CFAD process. 

��. Does the consortium have a formal document detailing its work beyond the questionnaire? *

Yes

��.� (Yes) Use the space below to provide a link to the formal document. *

GlendaleLEARNS has several formal documents in place to detail its work beyond the questionnaire. These documents
include: the boardʼs bylaws, contract between GCC and VWDB which is reviewed and updated annually, the MOUs
between GCC and each member which are reviewed and updated annually, MOUs between GCC and each partner, the
GlendaleLEARNS Three Year Plan, Annual Plans, and CFAD. In addition, the GlendaleLEARNS Coordinator completed
semi�annual reports which document accomplishments towards goals and strategies as well as contract deliverables.
Documents (except for MOUs) can be found on the GlendaleLEARNS website:
https://www.glendalelearns.org/consortiumresources 

Member Agencies

Member Agency Member Type Contact Phone

Glendale CCD District Dr. Alfred Ramirez (818) 240-1000

Verdugo Workforce
Development Board*

Workforce Development Board Judith Velasco (818) 937-8031

Glendale Unified Unified School District Glendale Learn MaryAnn Pranke (818) 937-8051

Certification & Assurances

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/members/4074/134
https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/members/4074/744
https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/members/4074/744
https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/members/4074/1299


4/12/24, 4:08 PM NOVA: CAEP CFAD 19 Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346/cfad/preview 6/7

By clicking "Approve" on the approval cards below, you are certifying the CFAD as well as confirming that you and ALL
consortium members agree to the Assurances listed below.

Assurances

Membership & Decision-Making

I certify that any community college district, school district, or county o�ice of education, or any joint powers authority
consisting of community college districts, school districts, county o�ices of education, or a combination of these, located
within the boundaries of the adult education region shall be permitted to join the consortium as a member (EC ����� (a)(b).
(See Membership Box above).
I certify that only members as described above (and in EC �����) are allowed to join my consortium as members and
participate in decision making and approvals whether in a public meeting, or via the NOVA planning, budgeting & expense
reporting system.
I certify that as a condition of joining a consortium, as a member, I shall commit to reporting any funds (as described in EC
�����) available to that member for the purposes of education and workforce services for adults and the uses of those funds
through the annual Program Area exercise in NOVA for reporting leveraged funds, and instructional hours.
I certify that as a member of the consortium my district shall be represented only by an o�icial designated by the governing
board of the member (EC ����� (c)).
I certify that as a member of the consortium, I shall participate in any decision made by the consortium (EC ����� (d)(�)(A)).
I certify that all decision made by the consortium and its members is final (EC ����� (d)(�)(F)).
I certify that I will adhere to the consortium rules and procedures and, as agreed upon by the consortium members, to any
additional by-laws, charters, etc.

Public Meetings

I certify that a proposed decision is considered at an open, properly noticed public meeting of the consortium at which
members of the public may comment (EC ����� (d)(�)(B)).
I certify that the consortium has provided the public with adequate notice of a proposed decision and considered any
comments submitted by members of the public, and any comments submitted by members of the public have been
distributed publicly (EC ����� (d)(�)(C)).
I certify that the consortium has requested comments regarding a proposed decision from other entities located in the adult
education region that provide education and workforce services for adults (EC ����� (d)(�)(D)(i)).
I certify that the consortium has requested comments regarding a proposed decision from other entities located in the adult
education region that provide education and workforce services for adults (EC ����� (d)(�)(D)(i)).
I certify that the consortium has considered input provided by pupils, teachers employed by local educational agencies,
community college faculty, principals, administrators, classified sta�, and the local bargaining units of the school districts and
community college districts before it makes a decision (EC ����� (d)(�)(E)).
I certify that in addition to the meeting requirements listed in EC �����, and as agreed upon by the consortium members, that
I will follow the public meeting requirements listed in the Ralph M. Brown Act as the Brown Act applies to the governing body
of any “local body created by state or federal statute.” (Ed. Code, section �����.)

Reporting Requirements

I certify that I will participate in completing and updating any consortium long range and/or short range planning e�orts
and/or budget work plans (EC �����, �����(a)).
I certify that all CAEP expenses have been expended in the CAEP seven program areas, and services provided are consistent
with the �-year plan, the annual plan, and my districtʼs work plan & budget as submitted in NOVA (EC ����� (�-�), �����,
����(a)).



4/12/24, 4:08 PM NOVA: CAEP CFAD 19 Glendale Community College District Regional Consortium

https://nova.cccco.edu/caep/consortia/4074/346/cfad/preview 7/7

���� © California Community Colleges
NOVA Site Version: �.�.�

I certify that my expenditures of CAEP funds match the objectives/activities included in the annual plan and the member work
plan (EC �����, �����(a)).
I certify that my expenditures of CAEP funds adhere to the allowable uses of funds as identified in the CAEP Fiscal
Management Guide.
I certify that I will report student level enrollment data and outcomes as prescribed by the State CAEP O�ice (EC �����).
I certify that I will share financial expenditure and progress reports with the members of my regional consortium.
I certify that I understand that as a member if I do not meet any of these items I have certified, I will be deemed an ine�ective
member which may result in a loss or reduction of CAEP funding (EC �����(b)).
I certify that all CAEP expenses have been expended only for the education of persons �� years of age or older (EC �����(a)).

No approver contacts.

https://nova.cccco.edu/releaseNotes


G
le

nd
al

eL
EA

R
N

S 
Pr

es
en

ts
:

Em
ot

io
na

l H
ija

ck
: 

H
ow

 to
 N

ot
 T

ak
e 

Th
in

gs
 P

er
so

na
l!

Su
m

m
ar

y:
 T

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 k
ee

p 
ou

r 
em

ot
io

ns
 u

nd
er

 c
on

tro
l r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
or

e 
th

an
 a

 
w

illi
ng

 h
ea

rt.
 It

 re
qu

ire
s 

se
lf-

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 s

el
f-a

w
ar

en
es

s 
sk

ills
.O

ur
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

m
an

ne
r 

of
 c

om
pr

eh
en

di
ng

 s
itu

at
io

ns
 d

ic
ta

te
s 

ou
r 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 r

ea
ct

io
ns

. 
Th

is
 

tra
in

in
g 

ex
pl

or
es

 t
he

 r
oo

t 
ca

us
e 

of
 e

m
ot

io
na

l 
hi

gh
ja

ck
 a

nd
 h

ow
 t

o 
de

al
 w

ith
 

it.
W

ill 
ex

pl
or

e 
th

e 
“W

hy
” 

be
hi

nd
 m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
le

ar
ne

d 
be

ha
vi

or
s 

an
d 

em
ot

io
ns

. 
Le

ar
n 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 w
ay

s 
yo

ur
 b

ra
in

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

au
to

m
at

ic
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

ns
 w

e 
m

ak
e 

to
 d

ai
ly

 e
ve

nt
s.

 E
xp

lo
re

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

ou
r 

re
ac

tio
ns

 
an

d 
th

e 
di

re
ct

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

of
 o

ur
 th

in
ki

ng
 a

nd
 fe

el
in

g.

Le
ar

ni
ng

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
•

H
ow

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 p

er
so

na
l a

w
ar

en
es

s 
se

lf-
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
em

ot
io

na
l i

m
pu

ls
es

.
•

Ex
pl

or
e 

ev
en

ts
 th

at
 tr

ig
ge

r a
n 

am
yg

da
la

 a
tta

ch
 (E

m
ot

io
na

l H
ija

ck
)

•
Ex

po
se

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 t
o 

a 
pr

ac
tic

al
 t

ec
hn

iq
ue

 o
f 

ho
w

 t
o 

de
al

 w
ith

 c
on

fli
ct

 
an

d 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
si

tu
at

io
ns

 w
he

re
 o

ur
 e

m
ot

io
na

l b
ra

in
 ta

ke
s 

ov
er

•
Ex

pl
or

e 
to

ol
s 

to
 re

gu
la

te
 e

m
ot

io
ns

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 s

itu
at

io
ns

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
A

pr
il 

18
, 2

02
4

1:
00

pm
 –

 3
:0

0p
m

RS
V

P 
to

 : 
m

pr
an

ke
@

gl
en

da
le

ca
.g

ov
 fo

r T
ea

m
s 

Li
nk

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

co
st

 to
 a

tte
nd

 th
is

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 d

ur
in

g 
ou

r 
m

on
th

ly
 G

le
nd

al
eL

EA
RN

S 
m

ee
tin

g.

mailto:mpranke@glendaleca.gov


Meeting Schedule
Program Year 2023 - 2024

Month Date Partner Presentation

July July 20, 2023

Professional Development: Stress 
Management: Manage your stress before it 
manages you!  Melina Sardar

August August 17, 2023 Cancelled Meeting

September September 21, 2023 The Campbell Center

October October 19, 2023 JVS SoCal

November November 16, 2023

Professional Development: TRAUMA!
The Most Powerful Hidden Barrier to 
Employment - Larry Robbin

December December 21, 2023 No Meeting

January January 18, 2024 Armenian Relief Society

February February 15, 2024 Labor Market Information: Healthcare

March March 21, 2024 Frank D. Lanterman Regional Center

April April 18, 2024 Professional Development: Sardar Consulting

May May 16, 2024 Strategic Planning

June June 20, 2022 Strategic Planning.

4/17/2024



The Verdugo Workforce Development Board (VWDB) envisions an economically vibrant, tri-city region
with thriving businesses, youth, and job-seekers on career paths that reflect their highest potential.

ANNUAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATES BY CITY

Unemployment Rates
 Comparison
Verdugo:
LA County:
California:
USA:

5.3%
5.0%
5.6%
4.2%

Source: Employment Development Department Labor Market Information Division
 Reporting Period: February 20241

Labor Market Report: Verdugo Region
February 2024
Quarterly Issue

8,800 58,500 101,700 169,000

VERDUGO REGION LABOR FORCE (RESIDENTS)

Labor force numbers are based on EDD estimates of the number of residents who earned at least $1 during the 
reporting period. These residents may be working outside of the Verdugo Consortium. The total Verdugo labor 
force as of February 2024 is 169,000.

Verdugo Workforce Development Board

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES COMPARISON
The unemployment rate decreased in the Verdugo Region and LA County. 

5.1% 4.4%

10.4%

8.2%

5.5%
6.9%

6.3%

4.3%
3.6%

9.9%
7.0%

4.2% 4.9% 4.9%

2.0% 1.7%

5.1%
3.7%

1.9%
3.5% 3.5%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Burbank Glendale La Cañada Flintridge

10
.4

%

9.
9%

5.
1%

9.
8% 10

.7
%

8.
8%

6.
7%

8.
2%

7.
0%

3.
7%

7.
2%

7.
1%

5.
4%

4.
2%5.

5%

4.
2%

1.
9%

4.
5%

4.
4%

3.
7%

3.
3%

6.
9%

4.
9%

3.
5%

5.
5%

5.
0%

5.
1%

3.
7%

6.
3%

4.
9%

3.
5%

5.
3%

5.
0% 5.

6%

4.
2%

BURBANK GLENDALE LA CAÑADA 
FL INTRIDGE

VERDUGO LOS ANGELES 
COUNTY

CALIFORNIA USA

December 2020 November 2021 December 2022 December 2023 February 2024



2

Number of employments in the Verdugo Consortium is determined by their industry sector when selecting the
North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code when businesses register with Dun & Bradstreet.

The Information sector includes publishing, broadcasting and social media; however, Information Technology falls
under Professional Services. Services includes repair and maintenance as well as personal services such as
housekeeping and laundry. Administrative and Support Services include office, employment, travel, and security
services.

Compared to 2020, employment in Professional Services, Health Care, Construction, and Eating and Drinking has
significantly increased in the Verdugo Region. Employment in Services increased by 93% since 2020 and by 27%
since 2023. Employment in Information Based Industries continues to decrease by 18% since 2020. These trends 
will likely continue given both the market demands as well as the impact of the current economic landscape.

TOP 10 INDUSTRY SECTORS FOR EMPLOYMENT- VERDUGO CONSORTIUM

Source: Dun & Bradstreet and Econovue
 

Labor Market Report: Verdugo Region
Verdugo Workforce Development Board February 2024

Quarterly Issue

35704

29914

23701

22896

19102

16244

15959

13975

10731

10560

35752

30162

23648

22227

14938

16083

16014

14072

10381

10429

35425

27002

22077

22619

14362

15777

15717

15208

10211

10443

34051

25885

20499

20597

13782

16171

15916

14670

10052

10265

28763

22524

28676

19953

9888

13521

18046

13008

11262

7153

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000 35000 40000

Health Care

Professional Services

Information-Based Industries

Retail Stores

Services

Eating and Drinking

Pub Admin/Educational
Services

Administrative and Support
Services

Manufacturing

Construction

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024



3

TOP OCCUPATIONS IN JOB ADS – VERDUGO AREA

Source: Employment Development Department Labor Market Information Division
    Reporting Period: February 2024

OCCUPATION # OF JOB ADS

1. Registered Nurses 534

2. Retail Salespersons 307

3. First-Line Supervisors of Retail Sales Workers 211

4. Fast Food and Counter Workers 204

5. Sales Representatives, Wholesale and Manufacturing 160

6. Home Health and Personal Care Aides 137

7. Customer Service Representatives 125

8. Managers, All Other 121

9. Medical and Health Services Managers 120

10. Security Guards 107

TOP 5 EMPLOYERS POSTING JOBS – VERDUGO AREA

Help Wanted Online from The Conference Board and 
WANTED Technologies report the top ten cities in 
the Los Angeles County with the most job ads. 
Consistently, Burbank and Glendale are reported 
amongst these top ten cities with the number of job 
ads posted for the reporting month. This indicates 
the economic vibrancy of the businesses in the 
Verdugo community relative to the other cities 
located in the region.

CITIES WITH THE MOST JOB ADS

Labor Market Report: Verdugo Region
Verdugo Workforce Development Board

*Increase/Decrease from December 2023 Verdugo LMI report. 

The total number of job ads for the Top 10 Occupations decreased by 41% from 3,409 in December 2023 to 2,026 in
February 2024. 

February 2024
Quarterly Issue

433 Ads
(-13%)

269 Ads
(-24%)

174 Ads 
(48%)

163 Ads
(-40%)

88 Ads 
NEW

71244
6956

5351
4765
4639
4042
3761
3411
2868
2676

0 20000 40000 60000 80000

Los Angeles
Long Beach

Torrance
Santa Monica

Pasadena
Burbank
Glendale

Santa Clarita
El Segundo

Beverly Hills



4

DEFINITIONS
Labor force: Persons classified as employed or unemployed.

Employed persons: Persons 16 years and over in the civilian noninstitutional population who, during the 
reference week, (a) did any work at all (at least 1 hour) as paid employees; worked in their own business, 
profession, or on their own farm, or worked 15 hours or more as unpaid workers in an enterprise operated by a 
member of the family; and (b) all those who were not working but who had jobs or businesses from which they 
were temporarily absent because of vacation, illness, bad weather, childcare problems, maternity or paternity 
leave, labor-management dispute, job training, or other family or personal reasons, whether or not they were 
paid for the time off or were seeking other jobs. Each employed person is counted only once, even if he or she 
holds more than one job. Excluded are persons whose only activity consisted of work around their own house 
(painting, repairing, or own home housework) or volunteer work for religious, charitable, and other 
organizations.

Unemployed persons: Persons aged 16 years and older who had no employment during the reference week, 
were available for work, except for temporary illness, and had made specific efforts to find employment 
sometime during the 4-week period ending with the reference week. Persons who were waiting to be recalled to 
a job from which they had been laid off need not have been looking for work to be classified as unemployed.

Unemployment rate: The unemployment rate represents the number unemployed as a percent of the labor 
force.

Source: US Bureau of Labor Statistics

Labor Market Report: Verdugo Region
Verdugo Workforce Development Board February 2024

Quarterly Issue



 

UAII Workforce Center 
1453 W Temple St 
2nd Floor 
Los Angeles, CA, 90026 
 
Wednesday 
April 24th, 2024 
Q & A 12:30 PM 
1:00 PM 
 

Officer Colwell: 43883@lapd.online 
Walk-ins Welcome! 


	CAEP Meeting Schedule 2023-2024
	Sheet1

	GlendaleLEARNS Meeting Minutes 032124
	LMI Report February 2024
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	Meeting Agenda 041824
	Melina Flyer April 2024
	Slide Number 1

	NOVA_ CAEP CFAD 19 GlendaleLEARNS 2024-2025
	UAII Flyer

